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2021

4,513,341.03 18.33
4,493,625.00 18.25
4,001,953.09 16.26
3,499,316.36 14.21
2,400,580.57 9.75
1,383,461.14 5.62
961,131.08 3.90
825,374.58 3.35
486,978.70 1.98
22,565,761.55 91.66
1,447,756.05 5.88
217,202.44 0.88
1,664,958.49 6.76
24,230,720.04 98.43
387,534.82 1.57
(24é?é25254'86) 100.00
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2021
INFOSYS LTD ADR US LINE 100,650 |  10.23| 1,122,008.86 |  18.46 | 2,024,139.00 | 8.22
TENCENT HLDGS LTD HKD 20,400 | 23.71|  483,609.02| 0.24 | 1,636,800.02| 6.65
HDFC BANK ADR US LINE 21,000 |  64.26| 1,349,515.30 |  73.13| 1,535,730.00 | 6.24
FooC SEERBANKOF RUSSIA 348,900 1.96 |  682,300.56 3.97| 1,384,507.42 | 5.62
T S CONDUCTOR 57,000 5.88|  335,130.30 | 21.50 | 1,225,630.74 | 4.98
AL IBABA GROUP HOLDING LTD 40,000 | 24.49| 1,001,520.02| 28.98| 1,185,183.57| 4.81
VALE SA BRL 52,504 9.50 | 498,791.02| 20.97 | 1,101,066.41| 4.47
ATA GROUP LTD HKD 64,800 9.68| 627,060.56| 12.74| 825,374.58 | 3.35
ROSNEFT OIL CO GDR LI LINE 115,400 6.83|  787,716.36 6.99 | 806,646.00 | 3.28
10 | p5 ROLEO BRASILEIRO PRF 175,942 5.08|  893,260.39 a2 | 77847817 | 3.6
11 | MEDIATEK INC TWD 17,000 | 16.01| 272,200.25 | 42.47| 721,930.51| 2.93
1 [ pnG AN INSURANCE K SHS 63,000 7.33|  462,100.55| 10.94|  689,261.04 | 2.80
13 | [o> OROUPHLOGS PLC GOR 11,604 |  42.47| 496,623.58| s57.02| e66,701.88| 2.71
14 | o1L LUKOIL ADR US LINE USD 7,700 |  62.66| 482,560.05 | 79.45 | 611,844.45 | 2.49
15 TAL EDUCATION ADR CL A USD 10,120 20.70 209,478.70 58.64 593,436.80 2.41
16 [ ol DESC0 SAADR PRE 125,400 4.44 |  556,704.39 a2 | 554,267,900 | 2.25
17 | RELIANCE INDS GDR LI LINE 10,200 |  43.24 |  441,047.66| 54.10|  551,820.00 | 2.24
18 | SUZANO SABRL 39,000 | 11.73|  468,173.80 | 12.67|  505,560.94 | 2.05
19 ng )’\(‘(éRlLSK NICKEL PJSC 14,219 33.14 471,192.09 34.67 492,972.73 2.00
20 | ! h) UNTBANCOHLDGS ADRLS 97,000 6.86 |  665,804.95 5.06 | 490,820.00 1.99
21 | YANDEX NV CL A US LINE 7,100 | 63.70| 457,969.03| 67.73| 4s6,978.70| 1.08
22 LOJAS RENNER SA BRL 61,400 7.63 468,619.89 7.49 459,726.50 1.87
23 NANYA TECHNOLOGY CORP TWD 138,000 2.79 384,793.43 3.28 453,010.32 1.84
24 | AXIS BANK GDRUSD LI LINE 7,957 | 59.33| 472,061.16 | 48.00| 381,936.00| 1.55
25 ,’:E‘g .?.E(I.;E\;I—D%L EDUCATION 23,970 6.44 154,449.36 15.61 374,171.70 1.52
26 | CHINAMERCHANTS BK H SHS 46,000 a01|  225,812.98 8.07| s71,157.89| 1.51
HK LINE
27 | ANHUI CONCH CEMENT H HKD 54,000 6.80 |  367,131.51 5.08 | 323,042.21| 1.31
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2021
KWE ICHOW MOUTAI CO LTD MLI
CW 13DEC21 2021/12/13 1,906 539,210.64 590,825.69 2.40
GREE ELECTRIC APPLIANCES
oW 05JUL21 2021/ / 47,300 401,638.49 437,676.36 1.78
JIANGSU HENGRUI MEDICINE
OW 09AUG21 2021/ / 32,300 415,917.41 419,254.00 1.70

2021

2021
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2021
12.51 1,363

2012 15 92,460 10,072 (15.01) (1.635)
11.33 1,234

2013 15 75,807 8,258 (12.83) (1.398)
10 9.75 1,062
2014 15 59,004 6,427 (9.75) (1.062)
11 8.96 976
2015 15 46,675 5,084 (8.96) (976)
12 7.00 763
2016 15 32,263 3,514 (7-00) (763)
13 9.89 1,077
2017 15 39,237 4,214 (9.89) (1.077)
14 13.64 1,486
2018 15 39,765 4,332 (13.64) (1.486)
15 10.93 1,101
2019 15 30,132 3,282 (11.93) (1.300)
16 12.34 1,344
2020 15 30,318 3,303 (13.34) (1.453)
17 12.53 1,365
2021 15 26,220 2,856 (13.53) (1.472)
2020 21,656 2,359 9.23 1,005
23,343 2,543 9.98 1,087

25.619 2,791 11.02 1,200

24,946 2,717 10.95 1,193

23,240 2,532 10.40 1,133

10 23,577 2,568 10.63 1,158

11 26,267 2,861 11.91 1,297

12 27,182 2,961 12.60 1,373

2021 24,946 2,717 11.96 1,303
25,076 2,732 12.19 1,328

24,378 2,655 11.93 1,300

24,618 2,682 12.18 1,327
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1.50 163.40
10 0.00 0.00
11 0.00 0.00
12 0.00 0.00
13 0.00 0.00
14 0.00 0.00
15 1.00 108.93
16 1.00 108.93
17 1.00 108.93

2011 18 2.50

2012 17
1.00
14 2018 16 1.00
19.90
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338,330 1,376,730 7,393,090

338,330 1,376,730 7,393,090

262,320 964,650 6,690,760

262,320 964,650 6,690,760

10 835,060 1,472,460 6,053,360
835,060 1,472,460 6,053,360

11 47,840 889,420 5,211,780
47,840 889,420 5,211,780

12 32,650 637,260 4,607,170
32,650 637,260 4,607,170

13 104,900 744,170 3,967,900
104,900 744,170 3,967,900

14 276,180 1,329,260 2,914,820
276,180 1,329,260 2,914,820

15 148,970 305,830 2,757,960
148,970 305,830 2,757,960

16 81,000 381,360 2,457,600
81,000 381,360 2,457,600

17 11,370 375,580 2,093,390
11,370 375,580 2,093,390

65/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

€Y)

10

50

2016

@

(b)

66/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2010 2018

33 39

33(1)

67/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2015 849

@)
a

68/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

100 3.30 3.0
10 2.20 2.0
10 100 1.10 1.0
100 0.55 0.5
@
10
10
10

10

69/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

10

10
10

@

70/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

(b)

©

(a
(b

(D @

©)

)
(¢

(h

@ Q)

71/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

@

(b)

©

(D

(e)

Q)

@

(b)

©

(D

)

)

@

W)

721240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

www . sumitrustgas.com

@

(b)

©

(D

()

14

1990

731240



30

EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12

74/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

75/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15

@

50

)

©

90

(D

76/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

15

14

@
(b)

@

(b)

©)

77/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

12

@

(b)

781240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

131

23 103

2021 30
108.93

79/240



2021

EDINETOOOO

1 o o o o =5 225159

Ooooooooooooooooooad

2021 15

2021 2020
6 657,913 71,666 639,636 69,676
2, 3 26,661,941 2,904,285 31,493,624 3,430,600
7 1,306,816 142,351 960,136 104,588
28,626,670 3,118,303 33,093,396 3,604,864
20,933,900 2,280,330 24,576,000 2,677,064
(95,365,796)  (10,388,196)  (94,941,291)  (10,341,955)
100,438,959 10,940,816 100, 683, 287 10,967,430
26,007,063 2,832,949 30,317,996 3,302,539
8 2,619,607 285,354 2,775,400 302,324
2,619,607 285,354 2,775,400 302,324
28,626,670 3,118,303 33,093,396 3,604,864

11
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2021 15
2021 2020

13 2,617,822 285,159 7,071,876 770,339
2,617,822 285,159 7,071,876 770,339
10 220,866 24,059 273,692 29,813
10 196,325 21,386 243,269 26,499
10 26,995 2,941 33,464 3,645
10 17,178 1,871 21,295 2,320
10 67,211 7,321 93,795 10,217
29,819 3,248 26,816 2,921
142,196 15,489 72,501 7,898
700,590 76,315 764,832 83,313
2 (68,170) (7.426) (126,623) (13,793)
1,849,062 201,418 6,180,421 673,233
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2021 15
2020 16 24,576,000 (94,941,291) 100,683,287 30,317,996
1,849,062 1,849,062
12 (2,093,390) (2,093,390)
113,700 1,317 115,017
(3,755,800) (425,822) (4,181,622)
2021 15 20,933,900 (95,365,796) 100,438,959 26,007,063
2019 16 27,579,600 (94,411,027) 96,963,066 30,131,639
6,180,421 6,180,421
12 (2,460, 200) (2,460, 200)
810,000 139,500 949,500
(3,813,600) (669,764) (4,483,364)
2020 15 24,576,000 (94,941,291) 100,683,287 30,317,996
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2021 15
1990
2004
2019 12
2015 10
2013 15
2004 16
ATFM
102 FRS102
2021 15 11
FRS102
2021 15 2020 15
2021 15 Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 09-Aug-21, Merrill Lynch Gree Electric
CW 05-Jul-21, Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co CW 13-Dec-21 UBS Kweichow Moutai Co CW 08-Feb-22
2020 15 Jiangsu Hengrui PN ML 02-Oct-20, Merrill Lynch Gree Electric 20-
Jul-20 Merrill Lynch Kweichow Mouta CW 04-Jan-21
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FRS102 1AS39

FRS102 22

FRS102 22

12

FRS102 7.1A

BBH
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2021 2020

24,321,326 29,487,941

2,340,615 2,005,683

26,661,941 31,493,624

24,321,326 24,321,326

2,340,615 2,340,615

24,321,326 2,340,615 26,661,941

29,487,941 29,487,941

2,005,683 2,005,683

29,487,941 2,005,683 31,493,624
2,340,615 2020 2,005,683

2020
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2021 15 1,333,097 5.13 2020 15 1,574,681 5.19
2020
2021 15 2020 15
12
COVID-19
2021 2020
3,190,059 5,064,891
2,236 17,135
5,449,645 151 5,111,867 703
72 6,567
2,577,456 213,166 1,413,862 35,020
11,217,160 215,625 11,590,620 59,425
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2021 2020
159,503 253,245
112 857
272,482 7 255,593 35
4 328
128,873 10,658 70,693 1,751
560,858 10,781 579,531 2,971
BBH

BBH BBH

BBH BBH

BBH

2020
10
10
10
50
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2021
26,007,063 26,007,063
2,619,607 2,619,607
28,626,670 28,626,670
2020
30,317,996 30,317,996
2,775,400 2,775,400
33,093,396 33,093,396
BBH BBH

2021 2020
3 263
4,065 150,569
1,302,748 803,670
5,634
1,306,816 960,136

2021 2020
1 5
377,939 175,960
2,093,390 2,460,200
10 148,277 139,235
2,619,607 2,775,400

2021 2020
2,457,600 2,757,960
11,370 81,000
(375,580) (381,360)
2,093,390 2,457,600
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1.88
0.07
0.90
0.70
0.10
2021 2020
31,073 35,982
27,608 31,971
3,827 4,426
2,432 2,813
10,174 14,033
28,981 26,872
44,182 23,138
148,277 139,235
FRS102
10 2021 15
2020 15
AIF
2021 15 2,093,390 1.00 2,093,390
2021 20 2020 15 2,460,200 1.00
2,460,200 2020 17
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2021 2020

5,014,274 3,308,029

33 45

5,014,307 3,308,074

(2,729,933) (1,267,584)

(126) 472)

(2,730,059) (1,268,056)

3,919,899

(268,853) -

601,660 1,104,800

767 7,159

2,617,822 7,071,876

2021 2020 2019
26,219,726 30,350,080 30,175,359
(32,084) (43,720)
(212,663)
26,007,063 30,317,996 30,131,639
2,093,390 2,457,600 2,757,960
12.53 12.34 10.93
1997 739 B
1997
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2021 2020
5.1971 4.1329
0.8246 0.8978
7.7542 7.7143
0.7323 0.7689
28.0070 29.9660
17
18
2021 11 24,799 1,025,581
COVID-19
2021 15 2021 11
26,007,063 24,288,876 6.61
2021 11
19
2021 11
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2021 15
2020 24.64
Banco Bradesco SA ADR 127,000 640,080 2.46
Grupo SBF SA 56,000 289,854 1.11
Itau Unibanco Holdings ADR 108,000 643,680 2.48
Lojas Americanas SA 62,020 226,619 0.87
Lojas Americanas SA - Rights 642 415
Petroleo Brasileiro SA Petrobras 200,322 1,083,884 4.17
Rumo SA 53,400 213,103 0.82
Vale SA 59,284 1,067,137 4.10
YDUQS Participacoes SA 45,500 309,047 1.19
4,473,819 17.20
2020 14.86
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 19,500 606,061 2.33
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd ADR USD 2,300 558,854 2.15
New Oriental ED & Technology GP Inc 2,687 473,234 1.82
Tal Education Group CL A USD 11,500 748,650 2.88
Tencent Holdings Ltd 22,400 1,863,256 7.16
4,250,055 16.34
2020 4.74
Anhui Conch Cement - H 57,000 374,895 1.44
China Merchants Bank - H 61,000 479,084 1.84
Ping An Insurance - H 66,000 877,541 3.38
1,731,520 6.66
2020 6.90
AIA Group Ltd 66,800 899,377 3.46
Galaxy Entertainment Group 47,000 349,431 1.34
1,248,808 4.80
2020 15.73
Axis Bank 11,900 544,425 2.09
HDFC Bank Ltd 23,565 1,783,164 6.86
Infosys Ltd 127,800 2,328,516 8.95
Reliance Industries 11,300 596,640 2.30
5,252,745 20.20
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2020 23.30
Mobile Telesystems PJSC 57,200 539,968 2.08
0il Company Lukoil PJSC E/C 4,322 350,169 1.35
Oil Company Lukoil PJSC US 13,099 1,061,805 4.08
Rosneft 0il Co 175,575 1,203,742 4.63
Sberbank of Russia PJSC 432,000 1,631,240 6.27
4,786,924 18.41
2020 7.09
Mediatek Inc 18,000 546,292 2.10
Nanya Technology Corporation 144,000 443,203 1.70
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing TWD 74,000 1,587,960 6.11
2,577,455 9.91
2020 97.26 24,321,326 93.52
2020 6.62
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 09-Aug-21 33,300 565,767 2.17
Merrill Lynch Gree Electric CW 05-Jul-21 49,300 483,120 1.86
Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co CW 13-Dec-21 3,306 1,065,840 4.10
2,114,727 8.13
2020 0.00
UBS Kweichow Moutai Co CW 08-Feb-22 700 225,888 0.87
225,888 0.87

2020 6.62 2,340,615 9.00
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2021 15

Alibaba Group Holding Ltd ADR USD 1,460
Ambev SA 147,000
Anhui Conch Cement - H 63,000

Banco Bradesco SA ADR 33,360
China Jinmao Holdings Group Ltd 672,000
Galaxy Entertainment Group 31,000
Grupo SBF SA 59,000

HDFC Bank Ltd 3,635
Infosys Ltd 79,340
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 09-Aug-21 46,900 13,600
Jiangsu Hengrui PN ML 02-Oct-20 51,300
Mediatek Inc 22,000

Merrill Lynch Gree Electric 20-Jul-20 62,100
Merrill Lynch Gree Electric CW 05-Jul-21 60,000

Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co CW 04-Jan-21 5,208
Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co CW 13-Dec-21 4,606 1,300
Oil Company Lukoil PJSC E/C 4,216
Petroleo Brasileiro SA Petrobras 51,600
Ping An Insurance - H 18,500
Reliance Industries 12,700

Rosneft Oil Co 46,077
Sberbank of Russia PJSC 118,975
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing USD 12,200
Tal Education Group CL A USD 5,200
Tencent Holdings Ltd 8,400
UBS Kweichow Moutai Co CW 08-Feb-22 700

20
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New Major Economies Fund
Statement of Financial Position
As at 15t January 2021

2020
Us$

639,636
31,493,624
960,136

33,093,396

24,576,000
(94,941,291)
100, 683, 287

30,317,996

2,775,400

2,775,400

2021

Notes uss$
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 6 657,913
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2,3 26,661,941
Debtors 7 1,306,816
Total assets 28,626,670
Equity
Unit capital 20,933,900
Unit premium (95,365,796)
Retained earnings 100,438,959
Total equity 26,007,063
Current Liabilities
Creditors 8 2,619,607
Total liabilities 2,619,607
Total equity and liabilities 28,626,670

33,093,396

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

On behalf of SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Peter Callaghan Keiji Nakamura

Date: 11th May 2021
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New Major Economies Fund
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 15% January 2021

2021 2020
Notes Us$ Us$
Income
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit 13 2,617,822 7,071,876
or loss
Total income 2,617,822 7,071,876
Expenses
Investment Manager fees 10 220,866 273,692
Distributor and Agent Security fees 10 196,325 243,269
Administration fees 10 26,995 33,464
Depositary fees 10 17,178 21,295
Sub-Custodian fees 10 67,211 93,795
Audit fees 29,819 26,816
Other fees and expenses 142,196 72,501
Total expenses 700,590 764,832
Withholding taxes 2 (68,170) (126,623)
Total comprehensive income for year 1,849,062 6,180,421

Gains and losses arose solely from continuing operations.

There are no recognised gains and losses other than those shown in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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For the year ended 15% January 2021

At 16th January 2020

Total comprehensive income for year
Distribution (Note 12)

Proceeds from equity units issued

Payments for equity units redeemed

At 15th January 2021

At 16th January 2019

Total comprehensive income for year
Distribution (Note 12)

Proceeds from equity units issued

Payments for equity units redeemed

At 15th January 2020

EDINETOOOO
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New Major Economies Fund

Statement of Changes

in Equity

Ooooooooooooooooooad

Unit Capital Unit Premium Egtﬁgﬂgg Total Equity
US$ Uss US$ Uss
24,576,000 (94,941,291) 100,683,287 30,317,996
- - 1,849,062 1,849,062

- - (2,093,390) (2,093,390)

113,700 1,317 - 115,017
(3.755,800) (425,822) - (4,181,622)
20,933,900 (95,365,796) 100,438,959 26,007,063
27,579,600 (94,411,027) 96,963,066 30,131,639
- - 6,180,421 6,180,421

- - (2,460,200) (2,460,200)

810,000 139,500 - 949,500
(3,813,600) (669,764) - (4,483,364)
24,576,000 (94,941,291) 100,683,287 30,317,996

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021

GENERAL INFORMATION

Daiwa Equity Fund Series (the“ Fund” ) was constituted on 4t June 2004 as an open-ended
umbrella unit trust authorised by the Central Bank of Ireland (the" Central Bank” ) pursuant
to the provisions of the Unit Trusts Act, 1990. The Fund was approved by the Central Bank as
a Retail Investor Alternative Investment Fund on 8t October 2015. A new Prospectus has been
approved by the Central Bank dated 12th July 2019.

The Trust Deed constitutes the Fund, which since 15t July 2013 is comprised of one sub-fund,
namely, New Major Economies Fund (the“ Sub-Fund” ). The Sub-Fund commenced operations on 16th
July 2004. The proceeds from the issue of units in the Sub-Fund are applied in the records
and accounts of the Fund for the Sub-Fund and the assets and liabilities and income and
expenditure attributable thereto are applied to the Sub-Fund subject to the provisions of the
Trust Deed. Monies subscribed for the Sub-Fund must be in its denominated currency, US Dollar
(* US$" ). These financial statements relate solely to the Sub-Fund.

The investment objective of the Sub-Fund is to provide unitholders with capital appreciation
by investing in a selection of diversified and potential high growth stock markets namely
Brazil, Russia, Eastern Europe, India and Greater China.

The Alternative Investment Fund Manager of the Fund is SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited
(the" AIFM" ).

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted by the Sub-Fund are as follows:

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with the historical
cost convention, as adjusted for the revaluation of financial instruments held at fair value
through profit or loss and in compliance with Accounting Standards issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, including Financial Reporting Standard 102, “ The Financial Reporting

Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and the Republic of lreland” (* FRS 102" ).

The financial statements for the current year have been prepared up to the valuation point of
15t January 2021 which is 11.00 am (Dublin Time) as detailed in the Prospectus.

The financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis of accounting.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of Preparation (continued)

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with FRS 102 requires management to
make judgements, estimates and assumptions that effect the application of policies and the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and income and expenses. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are summarised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Investments
This category has two sub-categories; financial assets and liabilities held for trading, and
those designated by management at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

Financial assets held for trading (* trading securities” ) are securities that are acquired
for generating a profit from short-term fluctuations in price or dealer®s margin or are
included in a portfolio in which a pattern of short-term profit taking exists. The Sub-Fund
held Equities and Participatory Notes as at 15% January 2021 and 2020, both of which are held
for trading.

Securities listed on a stock exchange or traded on a regulated market are valued at their
fair value based on quoted prices. Securities which are not freely transferable, or which are
not regularly traded, or which for any other reason are subject to limited marketability, are
valued at fair value determined by the AIFM.

As at 15t January 2021, the securities described above were made up of Jiangsu Hengrui
Medicine ML CW 09-Aug-21, Merrill Lynch Gree Electric CW 05-Jul-21, Merrill Lynch Kweichow
Moutai Co CW 13-Dec-21 and UBS Kweichow Moutai Co CW 08-Feb-22. As at 15t January 2020, the
securities described above were made up of Jiangsu Hengrui PN ML 02-Oct-20, Merrill Lynch
Gree Electric 20-Jul-20 and Merrill Lynch Kweichow Mouta CW 04-Jan-21. Further details can be
seen in the Schedule of Investments on pages 33 and 34.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Investments (continued)

The Sub-Fund®s trading securities are accounted for on the trade date and are acquired at
fair value at time of acquisition and transaction costs are expensed as incurred and included
in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Gains and losses on trading securities are
calculated on a“ first in first out” basis, include related transaction charges and are
included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income. Fair value estimates are made at a
specific point in time, based on market conditions and information about the financial
instrument. These estimates are subjective in nature, involve uncertainties and matters of
significant judgement, and therefore cannot be determined with precision. Changes in
assumptions could significantly affect the estimates.

Under FRS 102, Fair Value Measurement, the Fund uses the recognition and measurement
provisions of IAS 39 Financial Instruments.

Foreign Currencies

Assets and liabilities of the Sub-Fund denominated in foreign currencies are measured using
the currency (the functional currency) of the primary economic environment in which the Sub-
Fund operates, this is the US$. Securities transactions are recorded in the financial
statements on the trade date of the transaction and translated into US$ at the exchange rate
prevailing at the close of business on the trade date.

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into US$ at the
exchange rates ruling at the year end. Foreign currency gains or losses arising from trading
activities are included in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.

Functional and Presentation Currency

Items included in the Sub-Fund®s financial statements are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which it operates (the* functional currency” ), this is the
US$, as all units are issued and redeemed in US$, which is also the Sub-Fund®s presentation
currency.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income

Dividend income is recorded gross of any non-reclaimable withholding taxes suffered on an ex-
date basis. Interest income is accounted for on an effective interest basis gross of any non-
reclaimable withholding taxes. Discounts and premiums on securities are amortised and
accreted rateably over the life of the respective securities. These are presented as part of
net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit and loss in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income.

Expenses
Expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis.

Participating Units

The Fund issues equity units, which are redeemable at the unitholder®s option and are
classified as equity in accordance with FRS 102 Section 22. The Net Asset Value (* NAV” ) per
unit is calculated by dividing the total Net Assets of the Sub-Fund by the number of units in
issue. All units are issued and redeemed at this price.

Should the equity units® terms or conditions change such that they do not comply with the
strict criteria of FRS 102 Section 22, the equity units would be reclassified to a financial
liability from the date the instrument ceases to meet the criteria. The financial liability
would be measured at the instrument"s fair value at the date of reclassification. Any
difference between the carrying value of the equity instrument and fair value of the
liability on the date of reclassification would be recognised in equity. Equity units can be
put back to the Sub-Fund at any time for cash equal to a proportionate share of the Sub-
Fund®s trading NAV calculated in accordance with the Fund®s regulations.

Distributions

The AIFM®s intention is to declare distributions annually, in accordance with the provisions
of the Prospectus, out of all net interest, dividends and other income received by the Sub-
Fund subject to such adjustments as may be appropriate pursuant to the provisions of the
Trust Deed. The AIFM may also distribute to the unitholders annually or at such other times
as it may determine the realised and unrealised capital gains less realised and unrealised
capital losses of the Sub-Fund. All income and net capital gain of the Sub-Fund which are not
distributed shall be invested pursuant to the Sub-Fund®s investment policy.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Distributions (continued)

Distributions will be declared as at the accounting date (the" distribution date” ) and will
be paid on the second business day immediately following the distribution date to the
Distributor in respect of units distributed in Japan. Distributions will be made to
unitholders entered on the register at the close of business on the business day preceding
the distribution date. In Japan, if the holding of units is entrusted to the Distributor,
dividends will be paid to Japanese unitholders by the Distributor on the date designated by
the Distributor after its receipt. Please refer to Note 12 for further details.

Cash Flow Statement
The Fund has availed of the exemption available to open ended investment funds under FRS 102
Section 7.1A not to prepare a cash flow statement.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise balances held with Brown Brothers Harriman & Co. (* BBH" )
in its capacity as sub-custodian.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020
us$ uss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Held for trading:
- Equities 24,321,326 29,487,941
- Participatory Notes 2,340,615 2,005,683
26,661,941 31,493,624
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES

15t January 2021
(Continued)

4_  FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The table below shows financial instruments recognised at fair value, analysed between those

whose fair value is based on:

quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1);

those involving inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable

for the asset or liability, either directly (as prices) or indirectly (derived from

prices) (Level 2); and

those with inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

2021

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading
Equities

Participatory Notes

2020

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

Financial assets held for trading
Equities

Participatory Notes

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Uss$ Uss$ Uss$ Uss$
24,321,326 - - 24,321,326
- 2,340,615 - 2,340,615
24,321,326 2,340,615 - 26,661,941
29,487,941 - - 29,487,941
- 2,005,683 - 2,005,683
29,487,941 2,005,683 - 31,493,624
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

When fair values of listed equities at the reporting date are based on quoted market prices
or binding dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions), without any deduction for
transaction costs, the instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy. When the
Sub-Fund has assets and liabilities with offsetting market risks, it uses mid-market prices
as a basis for establishing fair values for the offsetting risk positions and applies the bid
or ask price to the net open position as appropriate.

Securities which are not freely transferable, or which are not regularly traded, or which for
any other reason are subject to limited marketability, are valued at fair value. As at 15th
January 2021, the total value of securities valued as described above, amounted to
US$2,340,615 (2020: US$2,005,683). For these financial instruments, values are based on the
underlying securities® quoted market prices and are therefore included within Level 2.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Prospectus of the Fund sets out a comprehensive disclosure of the risks that the Fund
faces and readers of these financial statements should therefore refer to the Prospectus to
ensure they have a full understanding of these risks. Purely for the purposes of these
financial statements and to facilitate compliance with accounting standards, the main risks
arising from the Fund®s investment strategies and measures thereof can be summarised as
follows:

Market Price Risk

Market price risk arises from uncertainty about future prices of financial instruments held.
It represents the potential loss the Sub-Fund might suffer through holding market positions
in the face of price movements. The Investment Manager employs a multi-layer approach to risk
management. The Schedule of Investments on pages 33 and 34 contains an analysis of the
portfolio by type of instrument and by geographical sector.

IT the official stock markets on which the units held by the Sub-Fund had increased by 5%
(2020: 5%) and the price of each Equity investment and Participatory Note had increased by
5%, whilst the foreign currency rates held constant, there would have been the following
approximate increase in Net Assets attributable to Holders of equity units:
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Market Price Risk (continued)
15t January 2021: US$1,333,097 (5.13%) 15t January 2020: US$1,574,681 (5.19%)

A decrease by 5% (2020: 5%) would result in an equal but opposite effect on Net Assets
attributable to Holders of equity units to the figures shown above, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant.

The above calculations are based on adjusting the fair value of listed equities as at 15t
January 2021 and 2020. The Investment Manager considers a 5% movement as an assumption for
the above analysis due to the investment security types held by the Sub-Fund. This represents
the Investment Manager®s view of a reasonable assumptive movement for a 12 month period based
on current market conditions.

Limitations of Sensitivity Analysis
The analysis is based on historical data and does not account for the fact that future
market price movements, correlations between markets and levels of market liquidity in
conditions of market stress may bear no relation to historical patterns.
The market price risk information is a relative estimate of risk rather than a precise and
accurate number.
The market price risk information represents a hypothetical outcome and is not intended to
be predictive.
Future market conditions could vary significantly from those experienced in the past.

During the year, a viral Covid-19 pandemic has spread across the globe. It is causing very
significant financial market, economic and social dislocation globally, including very
significant disruption to business and economic activity. The economic disruption may
significantly reduce the value of many financial instruments including those held by the Sub-
Fund. The ultimate extent of the effect of this on the Sub-Fund is not possible to estimate
at this time and will only be finally determined on realisation of investments.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk represents the potential losses that the Sub-Fund might suffer due to
adverse movements in relevant interest rates. The financial instruments of the Sub-Fund are
not exposed directly to interest rate risk. The majority of the cash balances held by the
Sub-Fund bear interest at a floating rate. The Investment Manager considers the interest rate
risk to be minimal.

Currency Risk

The Sub-Fund holds assets denominated in currencies other than the US$, the functional
currency. It is therefore exposed to currency risk, as the value of the securities
denominated in other currencies will fluctuate due to changes in exchange rates. The Sub-
Fund®s policy is not to enter into any currency hedging transactions.

Currency risks in emerging markets are correlated with sovereign risks, such that episodes of
currency trauma coincide with perceptions of political and financial sector vulnerability, as
well as the ability to meet external debt obligations. The Investment Manager assumes the
full currency risk in the equity portfolios and attempts to control for major event risks,
but not to systematically hedge currency. The Investment Manager states that to do so is
impractical because of the undeveloped state of local interest rate markets especially at the
long end of the yield curve, the existence of residual capital controls, the relatively high
foreign currency trading cost and limited market liquidity.

A substantial portion of the Sub-Fund"s assets are invested in currencies other than US$ and
any income received by the Sub-Fund from these investments will be received in those

currencies, some of which may fall in value against the US$. The Sub-Fund calculates its NAV
in US$, and there is therefore a currency exchange risk, which may affect the value of units.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Currency Risk (continued)
The currency exposure of the Sub-Fund®s investments and cash are set out as follows:

2021 2021 2020 2020

Non-Monetary Monetary Non-Monetary Monetary

us$ Us$ uss uss$

Brazilian Real 3,190,059 - 5,064,891 -
Euro - 2,236 - 17,135
Hong Kong Dollar 5,449,645 151 5,111,867 703
Pound Sterling - 72 - 6,567
Taiwan Dollar 2,577,456 213,166 1,413,862 35,020
11,217,160 215,625 11,590,620 59,425

At the year end, had the US$ weakened by 5% in relation to the above currencies, total equity
and the comprehensive income for the year per the Statement of Comprehensive Income would
have changed by the amounts:

2021 2021 2020 2020

Non-Monetary Monetary Non-Monetary Monetary

us$ Us$ uss$ uss$

Brazilian Real 159,503 - 253,245 -
Euro - 112 - 857
Hong Kong Dollar 272,482 7 255,593 35
Pound Sterling - 4 - 328
Taiwan Dollar 128,873 10,658 70,693 1,751
560,858 10,781 579,531 2,971
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or counterparty will be unable or unwilling to meet a
commitment that it has entered into and cause the Sub-Fund to incur financial losses. The
Sub-Fund is exposed to credit risk on parties with whom it trades and will also bear the risk
of settlement default.

SMT Trustees (lreland) Limited as Depositary has appointed Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank,
Limited (London Branch) as its custodian. Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited (London Branch)
have, in turn, appointed BBH as their sub-custodian. Both the cash and securities are
ultimately held at BBH with cash being held at BBH as banker. The Sub-Fund has elected to
enter into a BBH sweep programme, which means that BBH will sweep cash into overnight
eligible bank counterparty accounts in order to diversify overnight exposure and/or to gain
interest on the various accounts. The Sub-Fund acknowledges that participation in cash
management service involves investment risks (such as the loss of any balances swept) and it
also accepts the sovereign and counterparty risks associated with offshore overnight time
deposits. BBH has a Fitch credit rating of A+ (2020: A+).

Impairment provisions are provided for losses that have been incurred by the year end date,
if any. The Sub-Fund may not hold more than 10% of any class of security issued by any single
issuer. The Sub-Fund invests in financial assets, which have an investment grade as rated by
a well-known rating agency. For unrated assets, a rating is assigned using an approach that
is consistent with rating agencies.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk represents the possibility that the Sub-Fund may not be able to rapidly adjust
the size of its investment position in times of high volatility and financial stress at a
reasonable price in order to meet its liabilities.

The main liability of the Sub-Fund is the redemption of any units that investors may wish to

sell. Units can be redeemed on any dealing day that the redemption request is received and
accepted by the AIFM.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

Redemption Procedure: If the number of Units of the Sub-Fund falling to be repurchased on any
dealing day is equal to one tenth or more of the total number of Units of the Sub-Fund in
issue or deemed to be in issue on such dealing day, then the AIFM may in its discretion
refuse to repurchase any Units in the Sub-Fund in excess of one tenth of the total number of
Units of the Sub-Fund in issue or deemed to be in issue. If the AIFM so refuses, the requests
for repurchase of Units in the Sub-Fund on such dealing day will be reduced rateably and the
Units in the Sub-Fund to which each request relates which are not repurchased by reason of
such refusal shall be treated as if a request for repurchase had been made in respect of each
subsequent dealing day until all the Units in the Sub-Fund to which the original request
related have been repurchased. Requests for repurchase which have been carried forward from
an earlier dealing day shall (subject always to the foregoing limits) be complied with in
priority to later requests.

Temporary suspension of calculation of NAV and issue and repurchase of Units: The AIFM may
temporarily suspend, upon prior notification to the Depositary, the calculation of the NAV of
the Sub-Fund, the NAV per Unit of the Sub-Fund and the issue and repurchase of Units to and
from unitholders as detailed within the Prospectus.

The Investment Manager typically determines the liquidity of an emerging market by assessing
the average daily trading volume over the last three months. The Investment Manager also
applies their theory that market liquidity is usually available in rising markets and lacking
in declining ones. Liquidity considerations are one factor in determining the constituents of
their portfolio, this affords the Investment Manager the flexibility in making changes to
country or security weights as conditions warrant. The Investment Manager®s emerging markets
traders implement portfolio changes in a manner that minimises market impact, this
minimisation of market impact is a key consideration. Expected annual turnover is 50%.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Liquidity Risk (continued)

The table below and overleaf analyses for the Sub-Fund the financial liabilities and net
settled derivatives into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the
year end date to the contractual maturity date:

Less than 1 month Total
2021 Uss$ Uss$
Liabilities
Total equity 26,007,063 26,007,063
Creditors 2,619,607 2,619,607
Total Liabilities 28,626,670 28,626,670
2020
Liabilities
Total equity 30,317,996 30,317,996
Creditors 2,775,400 2,775,400
Total Liabilities 33,093,396 33,093,396

CASH AT BANK

Cash at bank is held with BBH who retains a security interest over the assets of the Sub-
Fund, up to the value of any advances or borrowings.

DEBTORS
2021 2020
us$ Uss
Interest receivable 3 263
Dividends receivable 4,065 150,569
Receivable for investments sold 1,302,748 803,670
Other receivables - 5,634
1,306,816 960,136
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021

(Continued)
CREDITORS
2021 2020
Us$ Uss
Interest payable 1 5
Payable for fund units repurchased 377,939 175,960
Distribution payable 2,093,390 2,460,200
Fees payable (Note 10) 148,277 139,235
2,619,607 2,775,400
UNITS ISSUED AND REDEEMED DURING THE YEAR
2021 2020
Number of units outstanding at start of year 2,457,600 2,757,960
Number of units issued 11,370 81,000
Number of units redeemed (375,580) (381,360)
Number of units outstanding at end of year 2,093,390 2,457,600

FEES AND EXPENSES

The Sub-Fund pays to the AIFM a monthly fee, accrued daily and payable monthly in arrears, at
an annual rate of 1.88% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund (plus VAT, if any). The AIFM pays each
relevant party"s fees out of its fee.

The AIFM is entitled to be repaid all of its administration expenses out of the assets of the
Sub-Fund, which shall include legal fees, courier®s fees, reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
of the Investment Manager and telecommunication costs and expenses. Unitholders are advised
that the total of all such expenses, which are charged at normal commercial rates, may
constitute a significant charge to the Sub-Fund.

The Sub-Fund pays to the Depositary, out of the AIFM"s fee, a fee accrued daily and payable
monthly, at an annual rate of 0.07% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund. The Depositary is entitled to
be repaid out of the assets of the Sub-Fund all of its reasonable out-of-pocket expenses,
including the costs of the sub-custodian.

The Sub-Fund pays to the Investment Manager, out of the AIFM"s fee, a fee accrued daily and
payable monthly, at an annual rate of 0.90% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

FEES AND EXPENSES (continued)

The Sub-Fund pays to the Distributor, out of the AIFM"s fee, a fee accrued daily and payable
monthly, at an annual rate of 0.70% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.

The Sub-Fund pays to the Agent Company out of the AIFM"s fee, a fee accrued daily and payable
monthly, at an annual rate of 0.10% of the NAV of the Sub-Fund.

The fees payable are as follows:

2021 2020

us$ Uss

Investment Manager fees 31,073 35,982
Distributor and Agent Security fees 27,608 31,971
Administration fees 3,827 4,426
Depositary fees 2,432 2,813
Sub-Custodian fees 10,174 14,033
Audit fees 28,981 26,872
Other fees and expenses 44,182 23,138
148,277 139,235

RELATED AND CONNECTED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The AIFM, Depositary, Investment Manager, Distributor/Agent Company and the sole unitholder
are deemed to be related parties under FRS 102. Fees incurred with related parties during the
year are disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive Income and amounts payable to related
parties at the year end are disclosed in Note 10. Daiwa Securities Co. Limited, the Sub-
Fund"s Distributor in Japan, is the sole unitholder as at 15t January 2021 and 2020.

In accordance with the requirements of the Central Bank AIF Rulebook, all transactions
carried out with the Fund by the AIFM, Depositary and Investment Manager or by delegates or
group companies (“ connected parties” ) must be carried out as if negotiated at arm™s length
and be in the best interests of unitholders. The AIFM is satisfied that there are
arrangements in place (evidenced by written procedures) to ensure that the obligations set
out above are applied to all transactions with connected parties and transactions with
connected parties entered into during the year complied with the obligations.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

DIVIDENDS

The AIFM is entitled to declare a dividend out of all net interest, dividends and other
income received by the Sub-Fund. The AIFM declared a dividend of US$2,093,390 (US$2,093,390
at US$1.00 per unit) declared on 15t January 2021, which was paid on 20th January 2021. The
AIFM declared a dividend of US$2,460,200 (US$2,460,200 at US$1.00 per unit) declared on 15th
January 2020, which was paid on 17t January 2020.

NET GAIN ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020
Us$ us$
Net realised gain from:
- Investments in securities and currencies 5,014,274 3,308,029
- Forward foreign currency contracts 33 45
5,014,307 3,308,074
Net realised loss from:
- Investments in securities and currencies (2,729,933) (1,267,584)
- Forward foreign currency contracts (126) (472)
(2,730,059) (1,268,056)
Net change in unrealised gain from:
- Investments in securities and currencies - 3,919,899
Net change in unrealised loss from:
- Investments in securities and currencies (268,853) -
Dividends on investments 601,660 1,104,800
Coupon on debt securities and interest 767 7,159
Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through 2,617,822 7,071,876

profit or loss
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021

(Continued)

NAV HISTORY

2021 2020 2019
Dealing NAV (US$) 26,219,726 30,350,080 30,175,359
Trade Date Adjustment - (32,084) (43,720)
Pricing Adjustment (212,663) - -
NAV per financial statements (US$) 26,007,063 30,317,996 30,131,639
Number of units 2,093,390 2,457,600 2,757,960
Dealing NAV per unit (US$) 12.53 12.34 10.93

TAXATION

Under current law and practice the Fund qualifies as an investment undertaking as defined in
Section 739B of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended. On that basis, it is not
chargeable to Irish tax on its income or gains.

However, lIrish tax may arise on the happening of a“ chargeable event” . A chargeable event
includes any distribution payments to unitholders or any encashment, redemption,
cancellation, transfer or the holding of units at the end of each eight year period beginning
with the acquisition of such units.

No Irish tax will arise on the Fund in respect of chargeable events in respect of:

(a) a unitholder who is neither Irish resident nor ordinarily resident in Ireland for tax
purposes, at the time of the chargeable event, provided appropriate valid declarations in
accordance with the provisions of the Taxes Consolidation Act, 1997, as amended, are held by
the Fund or where the Fund has been authorised by Irish Revenue to make gross payments in
absence of appropriate declarations; and

(b) certain exempted Irish tax resident unitholders who have provided the Fund with the
necessary signed statutory declarations.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

TAXATION (continued)

The Finance Act 2010 provides that the Revenue Commissioners may grant approval for
investment funds marketed outside of Ireland to make payments to non-resident investors
without deduction of Irish tax where no relevant declaration is in place, subject to meeting
the* equivalent measures” . A fund wishing to receive approval must apply in writing to the
Revenue Commissioners, confirming compliance with the relevant conditions.

Dividends, interest and capital gains (if any) received on investments made by the Fund may
be subject to withholding taxes imposed by the country from which the investment income/gains
are received and such taxes may not be recoverable by the Fund or its unitholders.

EXCHANGE RATES USED IN THIS REPORT

The following exchange rates were used to translate assets and liabilities into one US$:

2021 2020
Brazilian Real 5.1971 4.1329
Euro 0.8246 0.8978
Hong Kong Dollar 7.7542 7.7143
Pound Sterling 0.7323 0.7689
Taiwan Dollar 28.0070 29.9660

SOFT COMMISSION ARRANGEMENTS

The Sub-Fund does not have any soft commission arrangements.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
Notes to the Financial Statements
15t January 2021
(Continued)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to the year end and up to 11th May 2021, there were US$24,799 subscriptions into
the Sub-Fund and US$1,025,581 redemptions from the Sub-Fund.

As at the date the financial statements were available to be issued, uncertainty still
remains around the length of the disruption of Covid-19 and the impact on global markets.

Subsequent to the year end, the below table shows the fluctuation in the NAV:

15th January 2021 11th May 2021 Fluctuation
NAV per financial statements Dealing NAV
US$26,007,063 US$24,288,876 (6.61%)

There were no other events subsequent to the year end up to the date of approving the
financial statements on 11t May 2021, which require disclosure in the financial statements.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the AIFM approved the financial statements on 11t May 2021.
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES

NEW MAJOR ECONOMIES FUND

Schedule of Investments
15th January 2021

. inal Fair % of
Equities mgrlndiﬁg Va&gg NAV
Brazil (2020: 24.64%)

Banco Bradesco SA ADR 127,000 640,080 2.46
Grupo SBF SA 56,000 289,854 1.11
Itau Unibanco Holdings ADR 108,000 643,680 2.48
Lojas Americanas SA 62,020 226,619 0.87
Lojas Americanas SA - Rights 642 415 -
Petroleo Brasileiro SA Petrobras 200,322 1,083,884 4.17
Rumo SA 53,400 213,103 0.82
Vale SA 59,284 1,067,137 4.10
YDUQS Participacoes SA 45,500 309,047 1.19
4,473,819 17.20
Cayman Islands (2020: 14.86%)
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd 19,500 606,061 2.33
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd ADR USD 2,300 558,854 2.15
New Oriental ED & Technology GP Inc 2,687 473,234 1.82
Tal Education Group CL A USD 11,500 748,650 2.88
Tencent Holdings Ltd 22,400 1,863,256 7.16
4,250,055 16.34
China (2020: 4.74%)
Anhui Conch Cement - H 57,000 374,895 1.44
China Merchants Bank - H 61,000 479,084 1.84
Ping An Insurance - H 66,000 877,541 3.38
1,731,520 6.66
Hong Kong (2020: 6.90%)
AIA Group Ltd 66,800 899,377 3.46
Galaxy Entertainment Group 47,000 349,431 1.34
1,248,808 4.80
India (2020: 15.73%)
Axis Bank 11,900 544,425 2.09
HDFC Bank Ltd 23,565 1,783,164 6.86
Infosys Ltd 127,800 2,328,516 8.95
Reliance Industries 11,300 596,640 2.30
5,252,745 20.20

Russian Federation (2020: 23.30%)
Mobile Telesystems PJSC 57,200 539,968 2.08
Oil Company Lukoil PJSC E/C 4,322 350,169 1.35
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES

NEW MAJOR ECONOMIES FUND

Schedule of Investments
15th January 2021

(Continued)
Equities (continued) mgTé?ié Vziéé %NXC
Russian Federation (2020: 23.30%) (continued)
0il Company Lukoil PJSC US 13,099 1,061,805 4.08
Rosneft Oil Co 175,575 1,203,742 4.63
Sberbank of Russia PJSC 432,000 1,631,240 6.27
4,786,924 18.41
Taiwan Province of China (2020: 7.09%)
Mediatek Inc 18,000 546,292 2.10
Nanya Technology Corporation 144,000 443,203 1.70
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing TWD 74,000 1,587,960 6.11
2,577,455 9.91
Total Equities (2020: 97.26%) 24,321,326 93.52
Participatory Notes
Curacao (2020: 6.62%)
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 09-Aug-21 33,300 565,767 2.17
Merrill Lynch Gree Electric CW 05-Jul-21 49,300 483,120 1.86
Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co CW 13-Dec-21 3,306 1,065,840 4.10
2,114,727 8.13
Switzerland (2020: 0.00%)
UBS Kweichow Moutai Co CW 08-Feb-22 700 225,888 0.87
225,888 0.87

Total Participatory Notes (2020: 6.62%) 2,340,615 9.00
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DAIWA EQUITY FUND SERIES
NEW MAJOR ECONOMIES FUND
Schedule of Portfolio Movements (Unaudited)
15t January 2021

Acquisition Quantity Disposal Quantity
Alibaba Group Holding Ltd ADR USD - 1,460
Ambev SA - 147,000
Anhui Conch Cement - H 63,000 -
Banco Bradesco SA ADR - 33,360
China Jinmao Holdings Group Ltd - 672,000
Galaxy Entertainment Group - 31,000
Grupo SBF SA 59,000 -
HDFC Bank Ltd - 3,635
Infosys Ltd - 79,340
Jiangsu Hengrui Medicine ML CW 09-Aug-21 46,900 13,600
Jiangsu Hengrui PN ML 02-Oct-20 51,300
Mediatek Inc 22,000 -
Merrill Lynch Gree Electric 20-Jul-20 - 62,100
Merrill Lynch Gree Electric CW 05-Jul-21 60,000 -
Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co CW 04-Jan-21 - 5,208
Merrill Lynch Kweichow Moutai Co CW 13-Dec-21 4,606 1,300
0il Company Lukoil PJSC E/C - 4,216
Petroleo Brasileiro SA Petrobras - 51,600
Ping An Insurance - H - 18,500
Reliance Industries 12,700 -
Rosneft Oil Co - 46,077
Sberbank of Russia PJSC - 118,975
Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing USD - 12,200
Tal Education Group CL A USD - 5,200
Tencent Holdings Ltd - 8,400
UBS Kweichow Moutai Co CW 08-Feb-22 700 -

This schedule shows 8 acquisitions and 20 largest disposals in the year as required by the
Central Bank. It is not intended to provide a reconciliation between holdings at the beginning of
the year and holdings at the end of the year.
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( ) ( )
24,757,459.39 2,696,830
139,204.53 15,164
24,618,254.86 2,681,667
2,021,600
12.18 1,327
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2021
2,871,653,246.15 106,008,574 ,246 1,538,874,043.02

2,707,311,361.03

164,341,885.12

106,008,574 ,246

1,538,874,043.02
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2020 30 2019 30
( ) C ) ( ) « )
3,808,308 502,659 2,907,246 383,727
624,106 82,376 508,744 67,149
4,432,414 585,034 3,415,990 450,877
7,087,874 935,528 8,681,199 1,145,831
29,278,295 3,864,442 24,983,278 3,297,543
36,366,169 4,799,971 33,664,477 4,443,374
(5.889,429) (777,346) (4,625,022) (610,457)
30,476,740 4,022,625 29,039,455 3,832,918
34,909,154 4,607,659 32,455,445 4,283,794
62,992,338 8,314,359 62,992,338 8,314,359
4,050,000 534,560 4,050,000 534,560
118,389 15,626 (239,589) (31,623)
(32,251,573) (4,256,885) (34,347,304) (4,533,501)
34,909,154 4,607,659 32,455,445 4,283,794
26
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2020 30 2019 30
( ) « ) ( ) « )
30,796,780 4,064,867 27,148,217 3,583,293
(28,671,314) (3,784,327) (27,048,813) (3,570,173)
2,125,466 280,540 99,404 13,120
(32,172) (4,246) (4,838) (639)
2,093,294 276,294 94,566 12,482
2,437 322 (17,930) (2,367)
2,095,731 276,616 76,636 10,115
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2020 30 2019 30

2,095,731 276,616 76,636 10,115
409,118 53,999 (198, 446) (26,193)
(51,140) (6,750) 24,806 3,274
357,978 47,250 (173,640) (22,919)

2,453,709 323,865 (97,004) (12,804)
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62,992,338 4,050,000 (239,589)  (34,347,304) 32,455,445
2,095,731 2,095,731

357,978 357,978

357,978 2,095,731 2,453,709

62,992,338 4,050,000 118,389  (32,251,573) 34,909,154
62,992,338 4,050,000 (65,949)  (34,423,940) 32,552,449
76,636 76,636

(173,640) (173,640)

(173,640) 76,636 (97,004)

62,992,338 4,050,000 (239,580)  (34,347,304) 32,455,445
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2020 30

102

102
102 26
2014 39 102 11
102 12

102 102
2014
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405

2013 2013

2016 25
3,400 3,400
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2020 30 2019 30
18,197,043 17,521,382
10,474,271 9,527,431
28,671,314 27,048,813

2020 30 2019 30
13,270,915 13,699,704

1,472,961 1,455,274
886,575 737,773
2,566,592 1,628,631
18,197,043 17,521,382

215 2019 219

SMTTIL
2020 30 2019 30

106,000 148,000
790,276 769,431
43,849 98
23,000 23,000
6,050 7,100
81,773 74,317
322,438 348,688
577,613 1,927,411
1,143,479 1,164,753
69,231 60,535
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2020 30 2019 30
3,224 8,838
(5,661) 9,092
(2,437) 17,930
2020 30 2019 30
51,140 (24,806)
2020 30 2019 30
2,093,294 94,566
2019 261,661 11,821
(114,536) 85,198
627 745
7,246 9,443
(157,435) (89,277)
(2,437) 17,930
71,592 67,924

135/240




EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

2020 30
2019 30 9,669,143 9,669,143
1,478,675 1,478,675
2020 30 11,147,818 11,147,818
2019 30 6,761,897 6,761,897
577,613 577,613
2020 30 7,339,510 7,339,510
2020 30 3,808,308 3,808,308
2019 30
2018 30 7,804,061 7,804,061
1,865,082 1,865,082
2019 30 9,669,143 9,669,143
2018 30 4,834,486 4,834,486
1,927,411 1,927,411
2019 30 6,761,897 6,761,897
2019 30 2,907,246 2,907,246
Advent Geneva and Paladyne
2019 Vermillion

Paladyne, NTAS
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2020 30

2019 30 1,495,299 1,550,749 3,731,193 6,777,241

16,669 54,666 366,465 437,800

(132,545) (905,910) (1,820,413) (2,858,868)

2020 30 1,379,423 699,505 2,277,245 4,356,173

2019 30 1,326,131 1,482,813 3,459,553 6,268,497

51,349 65,765 205,324 322,438

(132,545) (905,910) (1,820,413) (2,858,868)

2020 30 1,244,935 642,668 1,844,464 3,732,067

2020 30 134,488 56,837 432,781 624,106
2019 30

2018 30 1,350,366 1,542,471 3,617,563 6,510,400

144,933 8,278 113,630 266,841

2019 30 1,495,299 1,550,749 3,731,193 6,777,241

2018 30 1,294,609 1,399,144 3,226,056 5,919,809

31,522 83,669 233,497 348,688

2019 30 1,326,131 1,482,813 3,459,553 6,268,497

2019 30 169,168 67,936 271,640 508,744

2020 30 2019 30

3,685,620 3,531,521

1,343,841 1,080,852

229,155 97,726

165,687 19,702

1,654,644 3,896,992

8,927 54,406

7,087,874 8,681,199

4,526,633 2019 4,813,762
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2020 30 2019 30
5,148,262 3,838,641
24,130,033 21,144,637
29,278,295 24,983,278
2020 30 2019 30
3,396,873 2,565,388
3,224 8,838
9,787 992
1,243,791 505,917
3,131 266,264
821,593 821,593
411,030 456,030
5,889,429 4,625,022
PAYE 2019 295,391 168,031
65,391 2019 54,073
2020 30 2019 30
492,338 492,338
62,500,000 62,500,000
62,992,338 62,992,338
50,000,000 100,000,000 2016
3,400
2020 30 2019 30
4,050,000 4,050,000
4,050,000 4,050,000
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405
2013
2020 30 2019
822,476 55,952 1,011,161 20,071
2,835,564 63,148 3,744,244 168,260
614,899 2,800,394
4,272,939 119,100 7,555,799 188,331
2020 30 2019 30
886,575 737,773
66,502 64,806
102 33
100 8233
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2,035,000

480,000,000

40,000

£2,127,500

2019

363,218
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COVID-19
COVID-19
COVID-19
30

€1,778,445 €51,974 €51,974
€3,948,410 €76,918 €76,918
€24,316 (€84) (€84)
€2,370,239 €36,795 (€3,047) €33,748
€165, 687 (€3,131) £162,556

2020 12 2021 30

96,866

€165,687 €165, 687
€165, 687 €165, 687
€3,047 €3,047
€3,047 €3,047
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2019 30
2,100,000 €1,812,839 (€81,979) (€81,979)
450,000,000 €3,664,205 (€151,432) (€151,432)
160,000 €97,016 €72 (€1,014) (€942)
£2,275,000 €2,537,645 €19,630 (€31,839) (€12,209)
€19,702 (€266,264) (€246,562)
2019 12 2020 30
363,218
2018 157,530
€19,702 €19,702
€19,702 €19,702
€266,264 €266,264
€266,264 €266,264
19 2014
2014 357
357 2020 30
20
2021 26
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Statement of financial position
as at 30 September 2020

30 September 30 September
Note 2020 2019
€ €
Fixed assets
Intangible assets 6 3,808,308 2,907,246
Tangible fixed assets 7 624,106 508,744
4,432,414 3,415,990
Current assets
Debtors 8 7,087,874 8,681,199
Cash at bank and in hand 9 29,278,295 24,983,278
36,366,169 33,664,477
Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 10 (5,889,429) (4,625,022)
Net current assets 30,476,740 29,039,455
Net assets 34,909,154 32,455,445
Capital and reserves
Called up share capital 11 62,992,338 62,992,338
Additional paid in capital 12 4,050,000 4,050,000
Cash flow hedge reserve 118,389 (239,589)
Profit and loss account (32,251,573) (34,347,304)
Total shareholders® funds 34,909,154 32,455,445

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this statement of financial position.

On behalf of the board

Director Director 26 January 2021

Keiji Nakamura Peter Callaghan
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Income statement
for the year ended 30 September 2020

30 September 30 September

Note 2020 2019

€ €

Turnover 30,796,780 27,148,217
Administrative expenses 3 (28,671,314) (27,048,813)
Profit on ordinary activities before interest and taxation 2,125,466 99,404
Interest (expense) (32,172) (4,838)
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 4 2,093,294 94,566
Taxation on ordinary activities 5 2,437 (17,930)
Profit for the year 2,095,731 76,636

All results have been generated by continuing operations.

The accompanying notes form an integral part of this income statement.
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of other comprehensive income
for the year ended 30 September 2020

30 September 30 September

Note 2020 2019

€ €

Profit for the year 2,095,731 76,636
Other comprehensive income

Effective portion of changes in fair value of cash flow 18 409,118 (198,446)

hedges

Income tax on other comprehensive income 5 (51,140) 24,806

Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax 357,978 (173,640)

Total comprehensive income for the year 2,453,709 (97,004)
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SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 30 September 2020

Called up Additional Cash flow Profit Total
share paid in hedging and loss equity
capital Capital reserve account

€ € € € €

Balance at 1 October 2019 62,992,338 4,050,000 (239,589) (34,347,304) 32,455,445
Total comprehensive income for the

period
Profit / (Loss) for the year - - - 2,095,731 2,095,731
Other comprehensive income for the _ ~ 357,978 _ 357,978

period

Total comprehensive income for the

i - - 357,978 2,095,731 2,453,709
period

Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity

Issue of Shares - - - - _

Total contributions by and
distributions to owners

Balance at 30 September 2020 62,992,338 4,050,000 118,389  (32,251,573) 34,909,154
Called up Additional Cash flow Profit Total
share paid in hedging and loss equity
capital Capital reserve account
€ € € € €
Balance at 1 October 2018 62,992,338 4,050,000 (65,949) (34,423,940) 32,552,449
Total comprehensive income for the
period
Profit / (Loss) for the year - - - 76,636 76,636
Other comprehensive income for the _ ~ (173,640) _ (173,640)
period
Totgl comprehensive income for the _ ~ (173,640) 76,636 (97,004)
period
Transactions with owners, recorded
directly in equity
Issue of Shares - - - - -
Total contributions by and _ _ _ _ _
distributions to owners
Balance at 30 September 2019 62,992,338 4,050,000 (239,589) (34,347,304) 32,455,445

145/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020

1

Accounting Policies

SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited (the “ Company” ) with a registered office at Block 5, Harcourt Centre,
Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, is a private company limited by shares and incorporated and domiciled in Ireland.

The functional and presentation currency of these financial statements is Euro.

The Company®s immediate parent undertaking, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited includes the Company in
its consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust
(Ireland) Limited are available to the public and may be obtained from Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt
Road, Dublin 2, Ireland.

In these financial statements, the company is considered to be a qualifying entity (for the purposes of this
FRS) and has applied the exemptions available under FRS 102 in respect of the following disclosures:
Reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding from the beginning to end of the period;
Cash Flow Statement and related notes; and

Key Management Personnel compensation.

As the consolidated financial statements of the Company®s ultimate parent, Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings
Inc. include the equivalent disclosures, the Company has also taken the exemptions under FRS 102 available in
respect of the following disclosures:
Certain disclosures required by FRS 102.26 Share Based Payments; and,
The disclosures required by FRS 102.11 Basic Financial Instruments and FRS 102.12 Other Financial
Instrument Issues in respect of financial instruments not falling within the fair value accounting rules
of Schedule 3, paragraph 39 of the Companies Act 2014.

The accounting policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1

Accounting Policies - (continued)

The principal accounting policies adopted by the Company are as follows:

Basis of Preparation

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with Financial Reporting Standard 102 (* “"FRS 102°%)
The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland and issued by the Financial
Reporting Council, and promulgated for use in lreland by Chartered Accountants lreland. The Company is also
subject to the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.

The financial statements are prepared under the historical cost basis except for the modification to a fair
value basis for certain financial instruments as specified in the accounting policies below.

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and
expense (e.g. useful economic life). The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the periods in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or
in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.
Interest income

Interest income is recognised in the income statement on an accruals basis.

Turnover and Administration Expenses

Turnover comprises fee income from administration and management services, which is accounted for on an
accruals basis. It also includes income earned from the recharge of services to other group companies.

Turnover and administration expenses are shown exclusive of amounts paid to other service providers. All

amounts are charged at normal commercial rates.

147/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1

Accounting Policies - (continued)

Foreign Currencies

The financial statements are expressed in Euro (€), which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company .

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates
prevailing at the balance sheet date. Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated at rates

which approximate the rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Share capital is translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of its issue.

Profits and losses arising from currency translation and on settlement of amounts receivable and payable in
foreign currencies are dealt with in the income statement.

Basic Financial Instruments

Trade and other debtors / creditors

Trade and other debtors are recognised initially at transaction price plus attributable transaction costs.
Trade and other creditors are recognised initially at transaction price less attributable transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition they are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method,
less any impairment losses in the case of trade debtors.

Cash

Cash comprises cash at bank and in hand. Term deposits have maturities of 1 to 3 years, and are repayable on
demand
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1

Accounting Policies - (continued)

Other financial instruments

Financial instruments not considered to be Basic financial instruments (Other financial instruments)

Other financial instruments not meeting the definition of Basic Financial Instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. Subsequent to initial recognition other financial instruments are measured at fair
value with changes recognised in income statement except as follows:

- investments in equity instruments that are not publicly traded and whose fair value cannot otherwise be
measured reliably shall be measured at cost less impairment; and

- hedging instruments in a designated hedging relationship shall be recognised as set out below.

Derivative financial instruments and hedging

Derivative financial instruments are recognised at fair value. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in income statement. However, where derivatives qualify for hedge accounting,
recognition of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being hedged (see below).

Cash flow hedges

Cash flow hedges are used to cover the Company®s exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable
to particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a firm commitment which could affect
income or expenses. Where a derivative financial instrument is designated as a hedge of the variability in
cash flows of a recognised asset or liability, or a highly probable forecast transaction, the effective part
of any gain or loss on the derivative financial instrument is recognised directly in Other comprehensive
income (* OCI” ). Any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised immediately in income statement.

For cash flow hedges, where the forecast transactions resulted in the recognition of a non-financial asset or
non-financial liability, the hedging gain or loss recognised in OCl is included in the initial cost or other
carrying amount of the asset or liability. Alternatively when the hedged item is recognised in income
statement the hedging gain or loss is reclassified to income statement.

When a hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or the entity discontinues designation
of the hedge relationship but the hedged forecast transaction is still expected to occur, the cumulative gain
or loss at that point remains in equity and is recognised in accordance with the above policy when the
transaction occurs. If the hedged transaction is no longer expected to take place, the cumulative unrealised
gain or loss recognised in equity is recognised in the income statement immediately.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1

Accounting Policies - (continued)

Taxation

Tax on the income statement for the year comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income
statement except to the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive

income, in which case it is recognised directly in equity or other comprehensive income.

Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the statement of financial position date, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax is provided on timing differences which arise from the inclusion of income and expenses in tax
assessments in periods different from those in which they are recognised in the financial statements. The
following timing differences are not provided for: differences between accumulated depreciation and tax
allowances for the cost of a fixed asset if and when all conditions for retaining the tax allowances have
been met, to the extent that it is not probable that they will reverse in the foreseeable future and the
reporting entity is able to control the reversal of the timing difference. Deferred tax is not recognised on
permanent differences arising because certain types of income or expense are non-taxable or are disallowable
for tax or because certain tax charges or allowances are greater or smaller than the corresponding income or

expense.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rate that is expected to apply to the reversal of the related difference,
using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax balances are not

discounted.

Unrelieved tax losses and other deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that is it probable
that they will be recovered against the reversal of deferred tax liabilities or other future taxable profits.

A deferred tax asset is recorded where it is more likely than not to be recoverable. The recoverability of
deferred tax assets is assessed annually by the directors.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1

Accounting Policies - (continued)

Intangible assets

Research and development
Expenditure on research activities is recognised in the income statement as an expense as incurred.

Expenditure on development activities may be capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Company intends and has the technical ability and sufficient resources to
complete development, future economic benefits are probable and if the Company can measure reliably the
expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its development. Development activities involve the
design, construction or testing of the production of new or substantially improved products or processes. The
expenditure capitalised includes the cost of materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads and capitalised borrowing costs. Other development expenditure is recognised in the income
statement as an expense as incurred. Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses.

Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation is charged in equal instalments on the cost of assets over their expected useful lives and is

included within administration costs.

Software 3 years (up to 31 July 2019)
Software 7 years (from 1 August 2019)

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where necessary. Assets in
the course of development are not amortised until they are brought into use.

Tangible fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less depreciation. Depreciation is charged in equal instalments on
the cost of assets over their expected useful lives and is included within administration costs.

Furniture and equipment 5 years
Software 3 years
Mainframe Equipment 3 years
Personal Computers 2 years
Computer Terminals 3 years
Fund administration system 3 years

Asset values are closely monitored and are subject to provisions for impairment where necessary.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

1 Accounting Policies - (continued)

Employee benefits

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for employees. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution pension plans are recognised as an expense in the income statement when they are due.

Additional paid in capital

Subordinated Loans of €4.05 million previously received from the Company*s parent, that are non-interest
bearing and repayable at the Company®s discretion, were reclassified as capital during 2013, after a review
of their terms and conditions, and the receipt during 2013 of confirmation from the Company®s parent and that
these amounts are repayable solely at the volition of the Company and that the Company®s parent will not
demand repayment of these amounts.

2 Ownership and operations

The Company, which is engaged in the provision of administration and management company services to various
funds, is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited, a company incorporated in the
Republic of Ireland. The ultimate parent company is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. a company
incorporated in Japan.

The financial statements are prepared on a going concern basis, and it is the intention of the directors to
continue to develop the activities of the Company in consultation with its parent. Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank
Limited is directly supporting the business development of the Company. On 25 January 2016, the Company
issued new share capital of 34 million €1 ordinary shares, upon the receipt of an investment of €34 million
from its parent company Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited.

The Company has entered into agreements with various entities to which it provides services. Under these

agreements, the Company has undertaken to provide administration and management company services for an
agreed fee.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

3 Administrative expenses

30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
Staff costs 18,197,043 17,521,382
Other administrative expenses 10,474,271 9,527,431
28,671,314 27,048,813
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €

Staff costs comprise:
Wages and salaries 13,270,915 13,699,704
Social welfare costs 1,472,961 1,455,274
Pension costs 886,575 737,773
Other costs 2,566,592 1,628,631
18,197,043 17,521,382

The average number of persons employed by the Company (including directors) during the year was 215
(September 2019: 219). The Company shared the use of facilities with SMT Trustees (lreland) Limited

(* SMTTIL” ) during the period. The related costs were allocated and recharged on an agreed basis, as set out
in service level agreements.

153/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

4

Profit on ordinary activities before taxation

The profit on ordinary activities before taxation has been determined after charging the following:

30 September

30 September

2020 2019
€ €
Directors” remuneration:
Fees 106,000 148,000
Other remuneration 790,276 769,431
Defined pension contribution scheme 43,849 98
No retirement benefits are accruing for directors.
Auditor®s remuneration:
Audit 23,000 23,000
Tax advisory services 6,050 7,100
Other assurance services 81,773 74,317
Depreciation 322,438 348,688
Amortisation of intangible assets 577,613 1,927,411
Operating lease rentals:
Land & buildings 1,143,479 1,164,753
Other assets 69,231 60,535
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

5 Taxation on ordinary activities
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
(a) Total tax expense recognised in the income
statement
Current tax
Current tax on income for the period 3,224 8,838
Under /(over) provision in respect of prior year - -
Deferred taxation
Under / (Over) provision in prior period - -
Origination and reversal of timing differences (5,661) 9,092
Total tax (credit) / expense (2,437) 17,930

30 September

30 September

2020 2019
€ €

(b) Total tax expense recognised in OCI
Deferred tax charge / (credit) 51,140 (24,806)

(c) Tax reconciliation

30 September

30 September

2020 2019
€ €
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2,093,294 94,566
Corporation tax based on standard rate at 12.5%
(September 2019: 12.5%) 261,661 11,821
Deficiency / (Excess) of depreciation over capital (114,536) 85,198
allowances
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 627 745
Differences arising from tax at the higher rate 7,246 9,443
Reimbursement for Group relief surrendered - -
Loss relief (utilised) / carried forward (157,435) (89,277)
Total tax (credit) / charge (2,437) 17,930
Income tax on health insurance premiums 71,592 67,924

The Income tax on health insurance premiums is included in other costs as per note 3 above.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

6 Intangible Fixed Assets

As at 30 September 2020

Software Total
€ €

Cost
At 30 September 2019 9,669,143 9,669,143
Additions during year 1,478,675 1,478,675
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2020 11,147,818 11,147,818
Amortisation
At 30 September 2019 6,761,897 6,761,897
Amortisation for year 577,613 577,613
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2020 7,339,510 7,339,510
Net book value at 30 September 2020 3,808,308 3,808,308
As at 30 September 2019

Software Total

€ €

Cost
At 30 September 2018 7,804,061 7,804,061
Additions during year 1,865,082 1,865,082
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2019 9,669,143 9,669,143
Amortisation
At 30 September 2018 4,834,486 4,834,486
Amortisation for year 1,927,411 1,927,411
Disposals during year - -
At 30 September 2019 6,761,897 6,761,897
Net book value at 30 September 2019 2,907,246 2,907,246

The intangible asset relating to the development of Advent Geneva and Paladyne as the core fund
administration system was fully amortised during the prior period.

The Company has been working to replace its front-end client reporting delivery portal with Vermillion which

went live on 1 August 2019. The additions during the current period are related to Paladyne, NTAS development
costs and further development of the core administration system.
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Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

7 Tangible Fixed Assets

As at 30 September 2020

Cost

At 30 September 2019

Additions during year
Disposals during year
At 30 September 2020

Depreciation

At 30 September 2019

Depreciation for year
Disposals during year
At 30 September 2020

Net book value at 30 September 2020

As at 30 September 2019

Cost

At 30 September 2018

Additions during year
Disposals during year
At 30 September 2019

Depreciation

At 30 September 2018

Depreciation for year
Disposals during year
At 30 September 2019

Net book value at 30 September 2019

Furniture & Software Computer Total
Equipment Equipment
€ € € €
1,495,299 1,550,749 3,731,193 6,777,241
16,669 54,666 366,465 437,800
(132,545) (905,910) (1,820,413) (2,858,868)
1,379,423 699,505 2,277,245 4,356,173
1,326,131 1,482,813 3,459,553 6,268,497
51,349 65,765 205,324 322,438
(132,545) (905,910) (1,820,413) (2,858,868)
1,244,935 642,668 1,844,464 3,732,067
134,488 56,837 432,781 624,106
Furniture & Software Computer Total
Equipment Equipment
€ € € €
1,350,366 1,542,471 3,617,563 6,510,400
144,933 8,278 113,630 266,841
1,495,299 1,550,749 3,731,193 6,777,241
1,294,609 1,399,144 3,226,056 5,919,809
31,522 83,669 233,497 348,688
1,326,131 1,482,813 3,459,553 6,268,497
169,168 67,936 271,640 508,744
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

8 Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
Fee debtors 3,685,620 3,531,521
Prepayments and accrued income 1,343,841 1,080,852
Other debtors 229,155 97,726
Short term asset on derivatives 165,687 19,702
Amount owed by related companies 1,654,644 3,896,992
Deferred tax 8,927 54,406
7,087,874 8,681,199
In addition, the Company has a further unrecognised deferred tax asset of €4,526,633 (September 2019: €
4,813,762). This has not been recognised due to the level of uncertainty over the timing of its recovery.
9 Cash at bank and in hand
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
Current accounts 5,148,262 3,838,641
Callable deposits 24,130,033 21,144,637
29,278,295 24,983,278
10 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
30 September 30 September
2020 2019
€ €
Accruals 3,396,873 2,565,388
Corporation tax 3,224 8,838
Interest payable 9,787 992
Trade creditors 1,243,791 505,917
Short term liability on derivatives 3,131 266,264
Amount owed to parent 821,593 821,593
Amount owed to related companies 411,030 456,030
5,889,429 4,625,022

Accruals include creditors in relation to PAYE of €348,328 (2019: €295,391), PRSI of €168,031 (2019: €
182,220) and other taxes of €65,391 (2019: € 54,073). The amount owed to the parent company is unsecured and
interest free. The amount owed to the related companies includes a balance relating to services as outlined

in the services agreement. The balance is unsecured and interest free and repayable on demand.

158/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

11

12

Called up share capital

30 September

30 September

2020 2019
€ €
Authorised
400,000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 each
100,000,000 ordinary shares of EUR €1 each
Allotted, called up and fully paid
400,000 ordinary shares of GBP £1 each 492,338 492,338
62,500,000 ordinary shares of EUR €1 each 62,500,000 62,500,000
62,992,338 62,992,338

On 8 January 2016, the Company increased its authorised share capital from 50,000,000 to 100,000,000 ordinary
shares of Euro 1 each. On 25 January 2016, the Company issued new share capital of 34 million €1 shares, upon
the receipt of an investment of €34 million from its parent company Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited.
The proceeds of the allotment will be used to fund the continued development of the Company business.

Additional paid in capital

30 September 30 September

2020 2019

€ €

Additional paid in capital 4,050,000 4,050,000
4,050,000 4,050,000

In connection with €4.05 million of the total amounts received to date by the Company under the terms of the
subordinated loan arrangements for the non-interest bearing loans, the Directors noted the resolution made in
September 2013 by Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited (the “ Parent Company” ) that they would not demand
repayment of the loans and that they are repayable solely at the volition of the Company. Accordingly, as
these amounts have now been confirmed as non-repayable and do not bear interest or carry any other economic
obligation they were re-classified on the statement of financial position from long-term liabilities to
capital, in order to better reflect the capital nature of the transactions.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

13 Commitments

Annual commitments under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

30 September 30 September

2020 2019
Land and Other Land and Other

buildings buildings
€ € € €

Operating leases which expire:

Within one year 822,476 55,952 1,011,161 20,071
In the second to fifth years inclusive 2,835,564 63,148 3,744,244 168,260
Over five years 614,899 - 2,800,394 -
4,272,939 119,100 7,555,799 188,331

Under an agreement, the Company has undertaken to provide or procure company secretarial and general
administration and support services to SMT Trustees (lreland) Limited and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank Limited
(London Branch), formerly known as Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (UK) Limited, a custody company based in the UK. In

return, the Companies have agreed that a fee will be paid for the services provided.

14 Pension costs

30 September 30 September

2020 2019

€ €

Pension charge for year 886,575 737,773
Pension charge payable at end of year 66,502 64,806

The Company operates a defined contribution pension scheme for its executive directors and employees.

15 Related parties
The Company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. whose consolidated financial
statements are publicly available. The Company is availing of the exemption under Section 33 of FRS 102 °

Related Party Disclosures’ to not disclose transactions with other group undertakings which would be
eliminated on consolidation in the financial statements of the group.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes

Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

16

17

Ultimate parent company

The Company®s immediate parent undertaking is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (Ireland) Limited, a company incorporated
in Ireland. The Company®s ultimate parent undertaking is Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc., a company
incorporated in Japan. The largest group in which the financial statements are consolidated is that headed by
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc. Copies of the financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Holdings Inc.
are available to the public and may be obtained from 1-4-1 Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-8233, Japan.

The smallest group in which the results of the company are consolidated is that headed by Sumitomo Mitsui
Trust (Ireland) Limited. Copies of the financial statements of Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland) Limited are
available to the public and may be obtained from Block 5, Harcourt Centre, Harcourt Road, Dublin 2, lreland.

Post balance sheet events

The Company has had to contend with the challenges of COVID-19 since March 2020. The Company continues to
deal with the challenges of operating in a working from home environment in an effective and efficient
manner. Whilst the commencement of the vaccine deployment is a very positive development, nevertheless the
impact of COVID-19 will continue for many months to come. The Company is adopting a prudent outlook to its
revenue projections to take account of the uncertainties of the full COVID-19 impact and the economic
adjustments that will occur once Government supports begin to recede.

The United Kingdom left the European Union on 31 December 2020. The Company have closely monitored the Brexit
process since the decision was made by the United Kingdom to withdraw and, as expected, it did not have any

material impact on the Company"s business but it is being closely monitored.

There were no other post balance sheet events which require amendment to or disclosure in the financial
statements.

161/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

18 Financial instruments - Hedge accounting

The following forward foreign currency contracts were open as at 30 September 2020.

B _ Total
Buy Euro UnrealéZ?g Unre%:;§§§ Unrealised
Gain / (Loss)
Sell US Dollar
$2,035,000 €1,778,445 €51,974 - €51,974
Sell Japanese Yen
\480,000,000 €3,948,410 €76,918 - €76,918
Sell Australian Dollar
$40,000 €24,316 - (€84) (€84)
Sell British Pounds
£2,127,500 €2,370,239 €36,795 (€3,047) €33,748
€165,687 (€3,131) €162,556

These cash flow hedges will settle quarterly over the period 1 December 2020 - 30 September 2021. The fair
value on the open contracts was calculated using WM Reuters forward fx rates. During the year a loss of €
96,866 (2019: loss of €363,218) was reclassified to the income statement, having previously been recorded in
the statement of other comprehensive income statement in accordance with the cash flow hedging policy. No
collateral exists for any derivative contracts.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
Forward currency contracts €165,687 €165,687
Total - €165,687 - €165,687
Liabilities
Forward currency contracts €3,047 €3,047
Total - €3,047 - €3,047

Unrealised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised directly in the statement
of financial position and the statement of other comprehensive income (page 11), in accordance with the
Company*s cash flow hedge accounting policy.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

18 Financial instruments - Hedge accounting (continued)

The following forward foreign currency contracts were open as at 30 September 2019.

B _ Total
Buy Euro UnrealéZ?g Unre%:;§§§ Unrealised
Gain / (Loss)

Sell US Dollar
$2,100,000 €1,812,839 - (€81,979) (€81,979)
Sell Japanese Yen
\450,000,000 €3,664,205 - (€151,432) (€151,432)
Sell Australian Dollar
$160,000 €97,016 €72 (€1,014) (€942)
Sell British Pounds
£2,275,000 €2,537,645 €19,630 (€31,839) (€12,209)

€19,702 (€£266,264) (€£246,562)

These cash flow hedges settled over the quarterly over the period 1 December 2019 - 30 September 2020. The
fair value on the open contracts was calculated using WM Reuters forward fx rates. During the year a loss of
€363,218 (2018: gain of €157,530) was reclassified to the income statement, having previously been recorded
in the statement of other comprehensive income statement in accordance with the cash flow hedging policy. No
collateral exists for any derivative contracts.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EUR EUR EUR EUR
Assets
Forward currency contracts €19,702 €19,702
Total - €19,702 - €19,702
Liabilities
Forward currency contracts £€266,264 £€266,264
Total - €266,264 - €266,264

Unrealised future gains and losses on these forward contracts have been recognised directly in the statement
of financial position and the statement of other comprehensive income (page 11), in accordance with the
Company*s cash flow hedge accounting policy.
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SMT Fund Services (lreland) Limited

Notes
Forming part of the financial statements for the year ended 30 September 2020 (continued)

19 Guarantee under Irish Companies Act, 2014

Under Section 357 (1) (b) of the Irish Companies Act, 2014 companies registered in Ireland may be exempted
from filing their individual accounts provided that their liabilities are irrevocably guaranteed by a Parent
Company, which is required to be a registered Company of a Member State of the European Union. The Parent
Company must incorporate the results of the subsidiaries into its Group accounts. The results of the Company
have been consolidated into the results of the immediate Parent Company and Sumitomo Mitsui Trust (lreland)
Limited has agreed to irrevocably guarantee the liabilities of the Company as at 30 September 2020, in
accordance with Section 357 of the Act.

20 Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved by the board of directors on 26 January 2021.
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2021 31
2021 31 2020 30

( ) C D ( ) « D
4,471,013 590,129 3,808,307 502,658
679,893 89,739 624,107 82,376
5,150,906 679,868 4,432,414 585,034
4,995,010 659,291 5,258,616 694,085
2,604,265 343,737 1,654,644 218,396
8,927 1,178 8,927 1,178
0 0 0 0
159,684 21,077 165,687 21,869
29,545,397 3,899,697 29,278,295 3,864,442
37,313,283 4,924,980 36,366,169 4,799,971
(4,795,261) (632,926) (4,640,663) (612,521)
(3,224) (426) (3,224) (426)
0 0 0 0
(1,230,623) (162,430) (1,232,623) (162,694)
(28,497) (3,761) (9,787) (1,292)
(140,319) (18,521) (3,131) (413)
36,266,265 4,786,784 34,909,154 4,607,659
62,992,338 8,314,359 62,992,338 8,314,359
4,050,000 534,560 4,050,000 534,560
(24,802) (3,274) 118,389 15,626
(32,251,573) (4,256,885) (34,347,304) (4,533,501)
1,500,301 198,025 2,095,731 276,616
36,266,265 4,786,784 34,909,154 4,607,659
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31
2021 31 2020 30
12

16,515,463 2,179,876 30,796,780 4,064,867
(24,968) (3,296) (32,172) (4,246)

16,490,495 2,176,580 30,764,608 4,060,621
(14,990,194) (1,978,556) (28,671,314) (3,784,327)

) 1,500,301 198,025 2,093,294 276,294

0 0 2,437 322

) 1,500,301 198,025 2,005,731 276,616
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Independent auditors® report to the unitholders of Daiwa Equity Fund Series

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion

In our opinion, Daiwa Equity Fund Series” financial statements:
give a true and fair view of the Trust"s assets, liabilities and financial position as at 15 January
2021 and of its results for the year then ended; and
have been properly prepared in accordance with Generally Accepted Accounting Practice in lreland
(accounting standards issued by the Financial Reporting Council of the UK, including Financial
Reporting Standard 102“ The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland” and Irish law).

We have audited the financial statements, included within the Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements, which comprise:

the Statement of Financial Position as at 15 January 2021;

the Statement of Comprehensive Income for the year then ended;

the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended;

the Schedule of Investments as at 15 January 2021; and

the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the significant accounting

policies.

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lreland) (* ISAs
(Ireland)” ) and applicable law.

Our responsibilities under ISAs (lreland) are further described in the Auditors® responsibilities for
the audit of the financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the Trust in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Ireland, which includes IAASA"s Ethical Standard, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relating to going concern

Based on the work we have performed, we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Trust®s
ability to continue as a going concern for a period of at least twelve months from the date on which the
financial statements are authorised for issue.

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Alternative Investment Fund Manager®s
(“ AIFM" ) use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements

is appropriate.

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this conclusion is not a
guarantee as to the Trust"s ability to continue as a going concern.

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the AIFM with respect to going concern are described in
the relevant sections of this report.
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Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report and Audited Financial
Statements other than the financial statements and our auditors® report thereon. The AIFM is responsible
for the other information. Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information
and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the extent otherwise explicitly
stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material
inconsistency or material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there
is a material misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report based on these
responsibilities.

Responsibilities for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the AIFM for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of Alternative Investment Fund Manager®s Responsibilities set
out on page 5, the AIFM is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance
with the applicable framework giving a true and fair view.

The AIFM is also responsible for such internal control as the AIFM determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, the AIFM is responsible for assessing the Trust"s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless the AIFM intends to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors® responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors” report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with I1SAs (lreland) will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these financial statements.

Our audit testing might include testing complete populations of certain transactions and balances,
possibly using data auditing techniques. However, it typically involves selecting a limited number of
items for testing, rather than testing complete populations. We will often seek to target particular
items for testing based on their size or risk characteristics. In other cases, we will use audit
sampling to enable us to draw a conclusion about the population from which the sample is selected.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on
the IAASA website at:

https://www. iaasa. ie/getmedia/h2389013-1cf6-458b-9b8F-a98202dc9c3as/Description of auditors
responsibilities for audit.pdf.
This description forms part of our auditors® report.
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Use of this report

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the unitholders as a body in
accordance with the European Union (Alternative Investment Fund Managers) Regulations 2013 and for no
other purpose. We do not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose
or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly
agreed by our prior consent in writing.

PricewaterhouseCoopers

Chartered Accountants and Registered Auditors
Dublin, Ireland

12 May 2021

The maintenance and integrity of the Daiwa Securities Co. Ltd. website is the responsibility of the
AIFM, together with the Distributor; the work carried out by the auditors does not involve
consideration of these matters and, accordingly, the auditors accept no responsibility for any changes
that may have occurred to the financial statements since they were initially presented on the website.
Legislation in the Republic of Ireland governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.
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Independent auditor’s report to the member of SMT Fund Services (Ireland)
Limited

1 Report on the audit of the financia statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of SMT Fund Services (Ireland) Limited (‘the Company’) for the year
ended 30 September 2020 set out on pages 10 to 33, which comprise the Income statement, Statement of financial
position, Statement of other comprehenseive income, Statement of changes in equity and related notes, including
the summary of significant accounting policies set out in note 1. The financial reporting framework that has been
applied in their preparation is Irish Law and FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Sandard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements:

give atrue and fair view of the assets, liabilities and financial position of the Company as at 30 September 2020
and of its profit for the year then ended;

have been properly prepared in accordance with FRS 102 The Financial Reporting Standard applicablein the
UK and Republic of Ireland; and

have been properly prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2014.
Basisfor opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (Ireland) (ISAs (Ireland) ) and
applicable law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of financial statementsin Ireland, including the Ethical Standard

issued by the Irish Auditing and Accounting Supervisory Authority (IAASA), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilitiesin accordance with these requirements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.

We have nothing to report on going concern

We arerequired to report to you if we have concluded that the use of the going concern basis of accounting is
inappropriate or there is an undisclosed material uncertainty that may cast significant doubt over the use of that
basis for aperiod of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements. We have nothing
to report in these respects.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information presented in the financial statements. The other information
comprises the information included in the directors report and statement of directors responsibilities. Our opinion
on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit
opinion or, except as explicitly stated below, any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

238/240



EDINETOOOO
1 o o o o =5 225159
Ooooooooooooooooooad

Our responsibility isto read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether, based on our financial
statements audit work, the information therein is materially misstated or inconsistent with the financial statements
or our audit knowledge. Based solely on that work we have not identified material misstatements in the other
information.

Based solely on that work, we report that
we have not identified material misstatementsin the directors report;
in our opinion, the information given in the directors report is consistent with the financia statements;
in our opinion, the directors report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2014.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2014
We have obtained al the information and explanations which we consider necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion the accounting records of the Company were sufficient to permit the financial statementsto be
readily and properly audited and the financial statements are in agreement with the accounting records.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

The Companies Act 2014 requires us to report to you if, in our opinion, the disclosures of directors remuneration
and transactions required by sections 305 to 312 of the Act are not made. We have nothing to report in this regard.

2 Respective responsibilities and restrictions on use
Responsibilities of directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the directors responsibilities statement set out on page 6, the directors are responsible
for: the preparation of the financial statementsincluding being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view; such
internal control asthey determineis necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern; and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonabl e assurance about whether the financial statements as awhole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assuranceis ahigh level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (Ireland) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered materia if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
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A fuller description of our responsibilitiesis provided on IAASA’s website at
https://www.iaasa.ie/getmedia/b23890131cf6458b9b8fa98202dc9c3a/Description of auditors
responsiblities for audit.pdf .

The purpose of our audit work and to whom we owe our responsibilities

Our report is made solely to the Company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 391 of the Companies
Act 2014. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Company’ s members those matters we
arerequired to state to them in an auditor’ s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law,
we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members, as a
body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

John Ahern 27 January 2021
for and on behalf of

KPMG

Chartered Accountants, Satutory Audit Firm

1 Harbourmaster Place

IFSC

Dublinl
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